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Federal M ne Safety and Heal th Revi ew Conm ssi on
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR Cvil Penalty Proceeding
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. CENT 80-276-M
PETI TI ONER A/ O No. 41-01330- 05003
V.

O Daniel Pit and Pl ant
PRI CE CONSTRUCTI ON, | NC.,
RESPONDENT

DECI SI ON

Appearances: E. Justin Pennington, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor, US.
Department of Labor, Dallas, Texas, for Petitioner
Bob Price, Vice President, Price Construction, Inc.,
Big Spring, Texas, for the Respondent

Bef or e: Judge St ewart

This is a proceeding filed by the Secretary of Labor, M ne
Safety and Health Administration (MSHA), under section
110(a) (FN. 1) of the Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30
U S.C. 0820(a) (hereinafter the Act), to assess civil penalties
agai nst Price Construction, Inc. (hereinafter Price) for
vi ol ati ons of mandatory safety standards. A hearing was held in
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the 118th Judicial District Courtroom County Courthouse, Big
Spring, Texas, on Novenber 7, 1980. Two wi tnesses were called by
MSHA and one witness was called by Price. The parties entered
the follow ng stipulations on the record:

The parties have stipulated to the jurisdiction of the
Revi ew Commi ssi on.

W have al so stipulated as to the coverage of the Act
as related to Price Construction, Incorporated, in that
Price Construction operates a mne which has products
entering into commerce or affecting conmerce

The parties have also stipulated to the conpany's
hi story of previous violations, and we have agreed t hat
t he conpany has a good history.

The parties have stipulated to the size of the

busi ness. The conpany, Price Construction

I ncor porated, the Respondent, is regarded as a smal
conpany. The mine involved, the O Daniel Pit and
Plant, is regarded as a medi um sized pit.

We have also stipulated to the effect of this
particul ar penalty proceeding on the ability of the
operator to continue in business and we have agreed
that this will have little or no effect on the
operator's ability to continue in business.

The Secretary has marked Petitioner's Exhibit Nunber 1
a data printout which reflects the assessed viol ation
history of Price Construction Conmpany and the O Dani el
Pit and Plant, and the parties have stipulated that the
printout accurately reflects the history of the

conpany.

Wth respect to the size of the mne, the parties have
stipulated that * * * the size of the conpany is

about 95,000 manhours per year. The size of O Daniel
Pit and Plant is approximtely 43,000 manhours per
year.

The decision rendered orally fromthe bench at the hearing,
foll owi ng argunent by the parties on the fact of violation and
the statutory criteria, is reduced to witing below as required
by the Rules of Procedure of the Federal Mne Safety and Health
Revi ew Conmi ssion, 30 C.F.R [2700. 65

In an off-the-record conference, the parties have

wai ved t he subm ssion of proposed findings of fact and
concl usi ons of | aw and supporting briefs.

Pursuant to the parties' stipulation to the accuracy of
an exhibit showing that the Price's history is good
with 13 paid violations, | accordingly find that the
operator's history of previous violations is good.
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The parties have stipulated that the Price Construction
Conmpany is a small conpany with approxi mately 95,000
manhours of work per year and that the O Daniel Pit is

a medi um si zed operation w th approxi mately 43, 000
manhours per year. There are twel ve enpl oyees at the

O Daniel Pit. | therefore find that Price Construction
Conmpany is a small conpany, and that the O Daniel Pit is
a nmedi um si zed operation

Pursuant to the parties' stipulation, | also find that
the assessed penalty in this case will have no effect
on the operator's ability to continue in business.

Citati on Number 160687 was issued on February 6, 1980
by Federal M ne Safety Inspector, Kenneth Page, in

whi ch he noted the condition or practice to be as
follows: "Upon arriving at the primary hopper area, an
enpl oyee was observed standing atop the grizzly
breaking a boulder with a twelve pound sl edge hamer

wi thout the aid of eye protection. The possibility of
flying foreign matter striking enployee in the eyes and
causing injury existed."

The citation was issued at 0800, and the operator was
given until 0815 in order to abate the citation. The
citation was termnated by the inspector at 0815 with
the action to term nate noted as follows: "enployee
was instructed to wear eye protection and his goggl es
were supplied and worn during this procedure.™

The citation cited a violation of 30 CFR 56. 15-4 which
reads as follows: "Mndatory. Al persons shall wear
safety gl asses, goggles or face shields, or other
suitabl e protective devices when in or around an area
of a mne or plant where a hazard exists which could
cause injury to unprotected eyes."

The evi dence establishes that there were two persons
working on top of a grizzly, a grate or a sieve-type
protection over the hopper opening where one of the
enpl oyees - M. Leslie Coleman - was breaking a boul der
by striking it with a sl edge hanmer. M. Col eman was
not wearing safety type gl asses, goggles, face shield
or other suitable protective device, although the other
person working on the grizzly was doing so.

In this area on the grizzly where boul ders are broken
by the use of a sledge hamer, a hazard exists which
could cause injury to unprotected eyes. This is an
operation normally carried on on top of the grizzly
since out of a truckl oad of material there may be four
or five boulders so
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large that they will not fall through the opening or
openings of the grizzly. These nmust be broken into
smal | er pieces, and the normal neans of doing so is by
striking themw th a sl edge hammrer.

M. Col eman had been the object of a prior citation for
failure to wear eye protection when working on the
grizzly. After this tine he had quit the enpl oynent of
Price Construction Conpany but had subsequently cone
back to work for that conmpany. He had been cautioned
by M. Ed Morris, the plant foreman at the O Daniel Pit
on several occasions for failure to wear his glasses or
other protective devices. Normally in the past when he
failed to wear protective devices, his goggles were in
the control tower, a short distance fromthe grizzly.

On the occasion when the citation was issued on
February 6, 1980, M. Coleman had left his goggles in
the Iab area which is near the plant office, about 100
yards fromthe grizzly. In order to abate the

vi ol ati on, soneone in the enploy of Price Construction
Conpany had to go and obtain goggles for M. Col eman
That took in the nature of fifteen m nutes.

There has been testinmony fromthe safety officer, M.
JimH ll, who assunmed that position in March of 1980
after citation Nunber 160687 had been issued. He
states that there is now a safety program under which
he recalls only one instance where a man was wor ki ng on
a feeder without eye protection and he was not on the
grizzly breaking rocks. VWen M. H Il assuned his
duties as safety officer, he found a set of safety

i nstructions promul gated by Price Constructi on conpany
for O Daniel Pit, but the particul ar operation of
breaking rock on top of this grizzly was not included.

Price Construction Conpany shoul d have been aware of
the propensities of M. Col eman concerning his failure
to wear safety goggles, and further, nore strenuous
efforts shoul d have been made in order to insure that
safety protection was worn by hi mwhen breaki ng rocks
on the grizzly. Al though sone efforts have been nade
by Price Construction Conmpany in an effort to prevent
violations of this type, | find that a requirenment to
wear eye protection when working on the grizzly in the
process of breaking rocks was not effectively enforced.

The failure of M. Coleman to wear his safety eye
protection was not controverted. Since Respondent did
not take adequate action to insure the use of such

equi prent through an effectively enforced requirenment |
find that Price Construction Conpany is in violation of
30 CFR 56. 15-4.
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The evi dence establishes that as M. Col eman was breaki ng
t he boul der on top of the grizzly by striking it with a
twel ve pound sl edge hanmer. Small pieces of rock were flying

fromthe boulder for a considerable distance. |t has been
established that this distance and the type of chips fromthe
boul der were sufficient to cause an eye injury. | therefore

have found it is probable that the violation would result in
serious injury.

I nspect or Page has testified that the operation of

O Daniel Pit as conmpared with the operation of the pits
of other simlar conpanies is excellent. Nevertheless,
our attention nust be directed on this occasion to the
particular citation that was i ssued on February 6th.
The evi dence establishes that the operator should have
known of the violation at the tine that it was observed
by the inspector. M. Coleman had a history of failing
to wear eye protective devices, and the operator was
aware of that history. He reported to work at about
7:00 a.m that norning, and the violation was observed
at 8:00 a.m Although the main office was a

consi derabl e di stance fromthe hopper, the operator
could have prevented this violation by an effectively
enforced program

Al though it is possible, as Price Constructi on Conpany
contends, that the violation would have been observed
and corrected within an hour after the time of the
citation at 8:00 a.m, the evidence neverthel ess shows
that the violation was observed at 8:00 a.m by the

i nspector and that there was nothing in the operator's
safety programto prevent that particular violation at
that specific tine. Breaking boulders with the
consequent flying about of rock particles is a normal
part of the operation at the hopper. Since Price
Construction Conpany failed to prevent the practice
observed by the inspector, | find that the operator was
negl i gent.

As to good faith, the inspector has testified that the
abatement efforts by Price Construction Conpany were
excellent. | therefore find that the respondent
denonstrated good faith in attenpting to achi eve rapid
conpliance after notification of the violation

In consideration of the statutory criteria prescribed
by the Act, | find that the appropriate penalty in this
case is $60.00. Respondent Price Construction Conpany
is ordered to pay Petitioner, MSHA, the sum of $60.00
within thirty days of the date of this decision.

CORDER

The deci si on announced fromthe bench in the above-captioned
proceedi ng i s AFFI RVED
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Respondent is ORDERED to pay2 the anpunt of $60.00 within 30
days of the date of this order if it has not already done so.

Forrest E. Stewart

Admi ni strative Law Judge
(FOOTNOTES START HERE.)
~FOOTNOTE_ONE

1 Sections 110(i), and (k) of the Act provide:

"(i) The Commi ssion shall have authority to assess al
civil penalties provided in this Act. 1In assessing civil
nmonet ary penalties, the Conm ssion shall consider the operator's
hi story of previous violations, the appropriateness of such
penalty to the size of the business of the operator charged,
whet her the operator was negligent, the effect on the operator's
ability to continue in business, the gravity of the violation
and the denonstrated good faith of the person charged in
attenpting to achieve rapid conpliance after notification of a
violation. |In proposing civil penalties under this Act, the
Secretary may rely upon a sunmary review of the information
avail able to himand shall not be required to nake findi ngs of
fact concerning the above factors.

"(k) No proposed penalty which has been contested
bef ore the Conmi ssion under section 105(a) shall be conprom sed,
mtigated, or settled except with the approval of the Conm ssion

No penalty assessment whi ch has becone a final order of the
Conmi ssion shall be conprom sed, nmitigated, or settled except
with the approval of the court”.

~FOOTNOTE_TWOD
2 Section 110(j) of the Act provides as foll ows:

"(j) CGvil penalties owed under this Act shall be paid
to the Secretary for deposit into the Treasury of the United
States and shall accrue to the United States and may be recovered
inacivil action in the name of the United States brought in the
United States district court for the district where the violation
occurred or where the operator has its principal office.

Interest at the rate of 8 percent per annum shall be charged

agai nst a person on any final order of the Conm ssion, or the
court. Interest shall begin to accrue 30 days after the issuance
of such order".



